



Journal of the Senate

State of Indiana

119th General Assembly

First Regular Session

Thirty-first Meeting Day

Monday Afternoon

March 16, 2015

The Senate convened at 1:30 p.m., with the President of the Senate, Sue Ellspermann, in the Chair.

Prayer was offered by Senator Dennis K. Kruse.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Senator Kruse.

The Chair ordered the roll of the Senate to be called. Those present were:

Alting	Leising
Arnold	Long
Banks, A.	Merritt
Bassler	Messmer
Becker	Miller, Patricia
Boots	Miller, Pete
Bray	Mishler
Breaux	Mrvan
Broden	Niemeyer
Brown	Perfect
Buck	Raatz
Charbonneau	Randolph
Crider	Rogers
Delph	Schneider
Eckerty	Smith
Ford	Steele
Glick	Stoops <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
Grooms	Tallian
Head	Taylor
Hershman	Tomes
Holdman	Walker
Houchin	Waltz
Kenley	Yoder
Kruse	Young, M.
Lanane	Zakas

Roll Call 282: present 49; excused 1. [Note: A indicates those who were excused.] The Chair announced a quorum present. Pursuant to Senate Rule 5(d), no motion having been heard, the Journal of the previous day was considered read.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Elections, to which was referred House Bill 1139, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 4, line 26, delete "P.L.64-2014," and insert "HEA 1138-2015, SECTION 152,".

Page 4, line 27, delete "SECTION 37,".
Page 5, line 5, delete "42 U.S.C. 1974," and insert "52 U.S.C. 20701,".

Page 5, line 9, delete "42 U.S.C. 1973;" and insert "52 U.S.C. 10301;".

Page 6, line 5, delete "42 U.S.C." and insert "52 U.S.C. 20701,".

Page 6, line 6, delete "1974,".

Page 6, line 11, delete "42 U.S.C. 1973." and insert "52 U.S.C. 10301.".

Page 9, line 28, delete "P.L.194-2013," and insert "HEA 1138-2015, SECTION 163,".

Page 9, line 29, delete "SECTION 55,".

Page 10, line 17, delete "42 U.S.C. 15481," and insert "52 U.S.C. 21081,".

Page 10, line 22, delete "42 U.S.C. 15481," and insert "52 U.S.C. 21081,".

(Reference is to HB 1139 as printed February 6, 2015.)
and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 9, Nays 0.

WALKER, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Elections, to which was referred House Bill 1140, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 9, Nays 0.

WALKER, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce & Technology, to which was referred House Bill 1286, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 4, between lines 28 and 29, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 4. IC 32-25-8-2.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 2.5. The minutes of meetings of the board of directors of a condominium, including the annual meeting, must be made available to a co-owner of the condominium for inspection upon request. The requesting co-owner may make a request to inspect the minutes:**

- (1) in person;
- (2) in writing; or
- (3) by electronic mail.

The association of co-owners may charge the requesting co-owner a reasonable copying fee if the co-owner requests a written copy of the minutes."

Page 4, line 40, delete "governing documents." and insert "condominium instruments."

Page 9, line 32, after "(k)" delete "," and insert "(1)".

Page 9, line 35, delete "request." and insert "request; and (2) the minutes of meetings of the homeowners association board, including the annual meeting, must be available to a member of the homeowners association for inspection upon the homeowners association member's request, which may be submitted:

- (A) in person;
- (B) in writing; or
- (C) by electronic mail."

Page 9, line 35, begin a new line blocked left beginning with "A written".

Page 9, line 39, after "request." insert "The homeowners association may charge a reasonable fee for the copying of a record requested under this subsection if the homeowners association member requests a written copy of the record."

Page 10, line 26, delete "Except as otherwise provided in this article, other".

Page 10, delete lines 27 through 32, begin a new line blocked left and insert:

"Except as otherwise provided in this article (including subsection (j) and this subsection), other applicable law, or the governing documents of the homeowners association, a homeowners association is not required to retain a record of a written or electronic communication for any specific period of time. However, a homeowners association or a member of the board of a homeowners association shall retain for at least two (2) years after receipt, and during that period shall make available to a member of the homeowners association at the member's request, any written or electronic communication received by the homeowners association or board member that relates to a financial transaction of the homeowners association and that is not otherwise excepted from disclosure under this article or other applicable law."

Page 13, line 31, after "Sec. 2." insert "(a)".

Page 13, between lines 40 and 41, begin a new line block indented and insert:

"(5) Impose a civil penalty on a member of the board of a homeowners association determined by the court to have taken an action described in section 1(1) or 1(2) of this chapter.

(b) A civil penalty imposed under subsection (a)(5) may not exceed five hundred dollars (\$500) for each action described in section 1(1) or 1(2) of this chapter that the board member is determined by the court to have taken. The proceeds of a civil penalty imposed under subsection (a)(5) shall be deposited in the state general fund."

Re-number all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1286 as reprinted February 3, 2015.)

and when so amended that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 6, Nays 0.

BUCK, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Elections, to which was referred House Bill 1335, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

WALKER, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce & Technology, to which was referred House Bill 1396, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 14, delete "disposal" and insert "recycling".

Page 3, delete lines 3 through 15, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 6. IC 9-13-2-44 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]. Sec. 44: (a) "Disposal facility" means a person, firm, limited liability company, corporation, or other legal entity that, in the course of business, engages in the acquisition and dismantling or demolition of vehicles, motorcycles, semitrailers, or recreational vehicles or their remains for the benefit of reusable components and parts or recyclable materials:

(b) The term includes the following enterprises:

- (1) An automotive salvage recycler.
- (2) A hulk crusher.
- (3) A scrap metal processor."

Page 4, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 14. IC 9-13-2-150.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 150.3. (a) "Recycling facility" means a person, firm, limited liability company, corporation, or other legal entity that, in the course of business, engages in the acquisition and dismantling or demolition of vehicles, motorcycles, semitrailers, or recreational vehicles or their remains for the benefit of reusable components and parts or recyclable materials.

(b) The term includes the following enterprises:

- (1) An automotive salvage recycler.
- (2) A hulk crusher.
- (3) A scrap metal processor that processes at least five (5) vehicles during a twelve (12) month period."

Page 4, after line 42, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 18. IC 9-22-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 128, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. The bureau shall issue a certificate of salvage title as proof of ownership for

a salvage motor vehicle when the acquiring insurance company, ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, or person does the following:

- (1) Applies for the certificate of salvage title.
- (2) Pays the appropriate fee under IC 9-29-7.
- (3) Surrenders the motor vehicle's original certificate of title or other proof of ownership as determined by the bureau.

SECTION 19. IC 9-22-3-13, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 110, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13. A scrap metal processor or other appropriate facility that purchases or acquires a salvage motor vehicle that has been totally demolished or destroyed as a result of normal processing performed by a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility is not required to apply for and receive a certificate of salvage title for the vehicle. The facility or processor that performed the processing that resulted in the vehicle being demolished or destroyed shall surrender the certificate of title, the certificate of authority, or the certificate of salvage title to the bureau.

SECTION 20. IC 9-22-3-19, AS AMENDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 47, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 19. (a) The secretary of state shall prescribe recordkeeping forms to be used by:

- (1) a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility;
- (2) an automotive salvage rebuilder; and
- (3) a used parts dealer licensed under IC 9-32-9;

to preserve information about salvage vehicles or major component parts acquired or sold by the business.

(b) The recordkeeping forms required under subsection (a) must contain the following information:

(1) For each new or used vehicle acquired or disposed of or for the major component parts of a new or used vehicle, the following:

- (A) A description of the vehicle or major component part, including numbers or other marks identifying the vehicle or major component part.
- (B) The date the vehicle or major component part was acquired and disposed of.
- (C) The name and address of the person from whom the vehicle or major component part was acquired.
- (D) Verification of the purchaser of the vehicle or major component part by driver's license, state identification card, or other reliable means.

(2) For motor vehicles acquired or disposed of, in addition to the information required by subdivision (1), the following:

- (A) The vehicle's trade name.
- (B) The vehicle's manufacturer.
- (C) The vehicle's type.
- (D) The model year and vehicle identification number.
- (E) A statement of whether any number has been defaced, destroyed, or changed.

(3) For wrecked, dismantled, or rebuilt vehicles, the date the vehicle was dismantled or rebuilt.

(c) Separate records for each vehicle or major component part must be maintained.

(d) The recordkeeping requirements of this section do not apply to hulk crushers or to scrap metal processors when purchasing scrap from a person who is licensed under IC 9-32-9 and who is required to keep records under this section.

SECTION 21. IC 9-22-3-22, AS AMENDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 48, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. (a) This section applies to vehicles and their component parts that are in either their current model year or in the immediately preceding six (6) model years when purchased by a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or automotive salvage rebuilder.

(b) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility and automotive salvage rebuilder licensed under IC 9-32-9 must complete the recordkeeping forms developed under section 19 of this chapter for the purchase of a salvage motor vehicle or major component part.

SECTION 22. IC 9-22-3-24, AS AMENDED BY P.L.93-2010, SECTION 10, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 24. The secretary of state, a police officer, or an agent of the secretary of state or a police officer may enter upon the premises of a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, insurance company, or other business dealing in salvage vehicles during normal business hours to inspect a motor vehicle, semitrailer, recreational vehicle, major component part, records, certificate of title, and other ownership documents to determine compliance with this chapter.

SECTION 23. IC 9-22-3-26 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 26. A court may issue a warrant to search the premises of an automotive salvage rebuilder, an automotive salvage recycler, a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, or a used parts dealer for any major component parts being possessed, kept, sold, bartered, given away, used, or transported in violation of this chapter.

SECTION 24. IC 9-22-3-35 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 35. The prosecution of a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, automotive salvage rebuilder, insurance company, or individual suspected of having violated this section may be instituted by the filing of an information or indictment in the same manner as other criminal cases are commenced.

SECTION 25. IC 9-22-5-18.2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.217-2014, SECTION 71, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 18.2. (a) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, a scrap metal processor, or an agent of a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor may purchase a motor vehicle without a certificate of title for the motor vehicle if:

- (1) the motor vehicle is at least fifteen (15) model years old;
- (2) the purchase is solely for the purpose of dismantling or wrecking the motor vehicle for the recovery of scrap metal or the sale of parts; and
- (3) the ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor records all purchase transactions of vehicles as required in subsection (b).

(b) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor shall maintain the following information with respect to each motor

vehicle purchase transaction to which the ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor is a party for at least two (2) years following the date of the purchase transaction:

- (1) The name and address of any secondary metals recycler or salvage yard.
- (2) The name, initials, or other identifying symbol of the person entering the information.
- (3) The date of the purchase transaction.
- (4) A description of the motor vehicle that is the subject of the purchase transaction, including the make and model of the motor vehicle, if practicable.
- (5) The vehicle identification number of the motor vehicle.
- (6) The amount of consideration given for the motor vehicle.
- (7) A written statement signed by the seller or the seller's agent certifying that the seller or the seller's agent has the lawful right to sell and dispose of the motor vehicle.
- (8) The name and address of the person from whom the motor vehicle is being purchased.
- (9) A photocopy or electronic scan of one (1) of the following forms of identification issued to the seller or the seller's agent:
 - (A) A current and valid driver's license.
 - (B) An identification card issued under IC 9-24-16-1 or a similar card issued under the laws of another state or the federal government.
 - (C) A government issued document bearing an image of the seller or seller's agent, as applicable.

For purposes of complying with this subdivision, a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor is not required to make a separate copy of the seller's or seller's agent's identification for each purchase transaction involving the seller or seller's agent but may instead refer to a copy maintained in reference to a particular purchase transaction.

(c) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor may not complete a purchase transaction in the absence of the information required under subsection (b)(9).

(d) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, a scrap metal processor, or an agent of a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or scrap metal processor that knowingly or intentionally buys a motor vehicle that is less than fifteen (15) model years old without a certificate of title for the motor vehicle commits a Level 6 felony."

Page 13, between lines 29 and 30, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 52. IC 9-32-9-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.217-2014, SECTION 169, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) A ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility, a used parts dealer, or an automotive salvage rebuilder must be licensed by the secretary under this chapter before the facility, dealer, or rebuilder may do any of the following:

- (1) Sell a used major component part of a vehicle.
- (2) Wreck or dismantle a vehicle for resale of the major component parts of the vehicle.
- (3) Rebuild a wrecked or dismantled vehicle.
- (4) Possess more than two (2) inoperable vehicles subject to registration for more than thirty (30) days unless the

facility, dealer, or rebuilder holds a mechanic's lien on each vehicle over the quantity of two (2).

(5) Engage in the business of storing, disposing, salvaging, or recycling of vehicles, vehicle hulks, or parts of vehicles.

(b) A person who violates this section commits a Class A infraction."

Page 13, line 32, strike "disposal" and insert "**recycling**".

Page 13, line 38, strike "disposal" and insert "**recycling**".

Page 14, line 36, after "report" insert "**the purchase of a vehicle**".

Page 14, line 37, delete "when a" and insert "**not later than thirty (30) days after the**".

Page 14, line 37, delete "has been" and insert "**is**".

Page 16, between lines 23 and 24, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 63. IC 9-32-9-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 78, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. If the secretary receives a written complaint from a local zoning body that a ~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility or automotive salvage rebuilder, subject to this chapter, is operating in violation of a local zoning ordinance, the secretary shall delay the issuance or renewal of the facility's or rebuilder's license under this chapter until the local zoning complaints have been satisfied."

Page 27, between lines 4 and 5, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 79. IC 13-20-25-10, AS ADDED BY P.L.126-2014, SECTION 9, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) A person:

(1) who:

- (A) is not required to submit a recycling activity report under section 9 of this chapter; but
- (B) recycled recyclable materials during a fiscal year;

(2) who:

- (A) meets the definition of "scrap metal processing facility" set forth in IC 8-23-1-36;
- (B) meets the definition of "automotive salvage recycler" set forth in IC 9-13-2-10;
- (C) meets the definition of "~~disposal~~ **recycling** facility" set forth in ~~IC 9-13-2-44~~; **IC 9-13-2-150.3**;
- (D) is engaged in business subject to IC 9-22-3;
- (E) meets the definition of "automotive salvage rebuilder" set forth in IC 9-32-2-5;
- (F) meets the definition of "scrap metal processor" set forth in IC 13-11-2-196.5;
- (G) meets the definition of "core buyer" set forth in IC 25-37.5-1-0.2; or
- (H) meets the definition of "valuable metal dealer" set forth in IC 25-37.5-1-1(b); or

(3) who:

- (A) is not required to submit a recycling activity report under section 9 of this chapter; but
- (B) took action during a fiscal year to recover, from the solid waste stream, for purposes of:
 - (i) use or reuse;
 - (ii) conversion into raw materials; or
 - (iii) use in the production of new products;

materials that were not municipal waste; may voluntarily submit a recycling activity report to the commissioner concerning the person's recycling activity during the fiscal year.

(b) The commissioner shall include information reported to the commissioner under this section in the annual reports that the commissioner is required to submit under section 14 of this chapter."

Page 29, after line 40, begin a new paragraph and insert:
"SECTION 81. IC 25-37.5-1-0.4, AS ADDED BY P.L.224-2013, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 0.4. As used in this chapter, "disposal facility" has the meaning set forth for "recycling facility" in ~~IC 9-13-2-44~~. IC 9-13-2-150.3."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1396 as printed January 30, 2015.)
and when so amended that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 6, Nays 0.

BUCK, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Family & Children Services, to which was referred House Bill 1616, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass and reassigned to the Senate Committee on Appropriations.
Committee Vote: Yeas 7, Nays 0.

GROOMS, Chair

Report adopted.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Resolution 39

Senate Resolution 39, introduced by Senator Lanane:

A SENATE RESOLUTION memorializing Pendleton, IN resident and US Marine Corps veteran, Cpl. Andrew Donald Shoup.

Whereas, Andrew Donald Shoup was born on March 14, 1979 in Laurel, Mississippi;

Whereas, at age 6, Andrew moved to Pendleton, Indiana where he attended school, graduating from Pendleton High School in 1997;

Whereas, Andrew Donald Shoup joined the US Marine Corps in January 1998 and was stationed at MCAS New River in Jacksonville, NC;

Whereas, Andrew Shoup faithfully and diligently served his country for 2 1/2 years as a Marine Cpl. and passed away June 21, 2000 as the result of a CH-53E Marine helicopter maintenance accident; and

Whereas, Andrew is survived by his parents James and Sally Shoup and his two brothers, Christopher Shoup, Matthew Shoup and sister-in-law, Brooke Shoup: Therefore,

*Be it resolved by the Senate of the
General Assembly of the State of Indiana:*

SECTION1. The Indiana Senate memorializes Pendleton resident and Marine veteran, Cpl. Andrew Donald Shoup

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit three (3) copies of this resolution to his parents James and Sally Shoup, his brother Christopher Shoup, and his brother Matthew Shoup.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by standing vote.

Senate Resolution 40

Senate Resolution 40, introduced by Senator Merritt:

A SENATE RESOLUTION recognizing the week of March 15, 2015 as "National Safe Place Week."

Whereas, The youth of Indiana will determine the future strength of our country and accordingly need a safe haven from various negative influences, such as child abuse, substance abuse, depression, and crime;

Whereas, Today's youth also need readily available resources to assist them when faced with circumstances that compromise their safety;

Whereas, The Safe Place program is committed to protecting the youth of Indiana by offering short-term housing at locations where trained volunteers are available to counsel and advise young people seeking assistance and guidance;

Whereas, Safe Place notably provides locations where youth can get information and immediate care as well and is found at businesses, such as restaurants, convenience stores, and movie theaters, and community buildings such as fire stations, libraries, and community centers;

Whereas, The success of Safe Place is based on public/private collaborations between businesses, school systems, public safety entities, and a network of volunteers;

Whereas, To meet the demand for these services, Indiana needs increased numbers of community volunteers to serve as mentors and positive influences on young people, and Safe Place must continue to meet performance standards to receive direct federal assistance as set forth in the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act;

Whereas, Overall, more than 1,500 communities in 39 states administer the Safe Place program at more than 19,000 locations, and more than 300,000 youth have been assisted at a Safe Place location or have received counseling by phone as a result of Safe Place information received at a school;

Whereas, Furthermore, since the program's inception in 1983, more than 11 million youth have been reached through National Safe Place's Building a Safety Net for Youth campaign, familiarizing them with the Safe Place sign and providing them with information about how to seek help; and

Whereas, Increased awareness will encourage more communities to establish Safe Place locations where youth can readily access the help they need: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana Senate recognizes the week of March 15 through March 22, 2015, as "National Safe Place Week," and calls upon the people of Indiana and interested groups to promote awareness of, and volunteer involvement in, the Safe Place program.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Indiana Youth Services Association.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 29

Senate Concurrent Resolution 29, introduced by Senator Messmer:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION congratulating the Princeton High School girls basketball team for winning the 2014-2015 IHSAA Class 3A State Championship Title.

Whereas, On Saturday March 7, 2015, the Princeton High School girls basketball team captured the 2014-2015 IHSAA Class 3A state championship title in Bankers Life Fieldhouse in downtown Indianapolis;

Whereas, This win gave the Princeton Tigers their last in a 26-game winning streak;

Whereas, Princeton Junior Jackie Young scored a record 36 points, grabbed 12 rebounds, had 6 assists and 4 steals to boost the Tigers to a 72-44 victory over the Tippecanoe Valley Vikings;

Whereas, With this win, the Princeton Tigers tied the record for most points scored and established a 28 point margin of victory, the largest ever in a Class 3A championship game;

Whereas, Young's 36 points represented a new record for Class 3A and for all classes since the advent of the multiple-class system in 1997-1998;

Whereas, As the state's second-leading scorer this season with a 31.9 average per game, Young also surpassed the 1,000 point mark this season, totaling 1,003 points to become the first girl to

reach that milestone and only the fifth player in Indiana high school basketball history to do so;

Whereas, Young also broke the record for most field goals made by an individual by sinking 15 of her shots;

Whereas, Brooke James also scored in the double-digits in the state final, totaling 15 points;

Whereas, James scored the final 13 points of the first half to push the Tigers to a 38-22 halftime lead, breaking the record for most points scored in one half;

Whereas, The Tigers were ranked fourth by the ICGSA and finished their season at 30-1;

Whereas, This is the first state title for the Princeton girls basketball team and the second in school history, joining the 2009 3A boys basketball state title team; and

Whereas, It is fitting that the Indiana General Assembly gives special recognition to the Princeton High School girls basketball team for its hard work and perseverance in capturing the 2014-2015 IHSAA Class 3A state title: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates the Princeton High School girls basketball team for winning the 2014-2015 IHSAA Class 3A State Championship Title.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of this Resolution to each member of the Princeton High School girls basketball team including: Tanisha Adams, Aleni Brewer, Hannah Brewer, Easton Chandler, Ashleigh Chestnut, Kiana Hardiman, Emma Heldt, Samantha Hyneman, Brooke James, Alyssa Koberstein, Kelsey Kolb-Blume, Ava Little, Tori Matthews, Kaycee Russell, Sabreena Salemie, Raelynn Thompson, Keaton Whetstone, Jackie Young, and Kiare Young; their Head Coach Charlie Mair; Princeton High School Principal Steve Hauger; and Dr. Brian Harmon.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsor: Representative Washburne.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the following resolutions be adopted:

SR 35 Senator Grooms

Congratulating Thomas Jefferson Elementary School.

HCR 36 Senator Houchin

Recognizing the Lincoln Hills Development Corporation on the 50th anniversary of its incorporation.

HCR 37 Senator Steele
Recognizing Elder Heart.

LONG

Motion prevailed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Resolution 35

Senate Resolution 35, introduced by Senator Grooms:

A SENATE RESOLUTION congratulating Thomas Jefferson Elementary School for its music program's outstanding achievements and recognizing the important role music education plays in students' daily curriculum.

Whereas, On March 13, 2015, Thomas Jefferson Elementary School in Jeffersonville, Indiana will be formerly honored during the 2015 Music In Our Schools Tour for its music program's outstanding achievements;

Whereas, This national recognition and monetary grant, presented by Give A Note Foundation in partnership with the National Association for Music Education, is a result of Thomas Jefferson Elementary's commitment to incorporating music into students' daily curriculum;

Whereas, The study of music contributes to students' development through heightened skills in listening, reading, self-expression, and creativity;

Whereas, Music education and other arts in schools also significantly enhance the morale and quality of school environments; and

Whereas, Such commitment by Thomas Jefferson Elementary School to enrich its students' education should be commended: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana Senate congratulates Thomas Jefferson Elementary School for its music program's outstanding achievements and recognizes the important role music education plays in students' daily curriculum.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Principal of Thomas Jefferson Elementary School, Jennifer Korfhage.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote.

House Concurrent Resolution 36

House Concurrent Resolution 36, sponsored by Senator Houchin:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION recognizing the Lincoln Hills Development Corporation on the 50th anniversary of its incorporation.

Whereas, In 2012, 758,158 Hoosiers turned to Community Action Agencies for help;

Whereas, Lincoln Hills Development Corporation works diligently to make life better for Hoosiers by providing opportunities that empower people to improve their quality of life;

Whereas, Lincoln Hills Development Corporation is a locally governed Community Action Agency funded through a combination of federal, state, and local resources;

Whereas, Lincoln Hills Development Corporation was founded in 1965 to serve the citizens of Southern Indiana, primarily in Crawford, Harrison, Perry, and Spencer counties;

Whereas, The mission of Lincoln Hills Development Corporation is to provide services to help disadvantaged residents and improve their quality of life throughout Southern Indiana;

Whereas, Lincoln Hills Development Corporation is governed by a 15-member volunteer board of directors composed of representatives of the low income population, the private sector, and public officials;

Whereas, In 2014, Lincoln Hills Development Corporation helped approximately 9,000 persons improve their lives; and

Whereas, Dedicated service to those in need deserves special recognition: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates Lincoln Hills Development Corporation on 50 years of dedicated service to the people of Southern Indiana and encourages the agency to continue providing a means for these Hoosiers to improve their lives.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit a copy of this resolution to the board of directors of the Lincoln Hills Development Corporation and Executive Director/CEO Larry K. Kleeman.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

House Concurrent Resolution 37

House Concurrent Resolution 37, sponsored by Senator Steele:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION recognizing Elder Heart.

Whereas, Elder Heart was created by a Brown County veteran in order to raise awareness of the veteran suicide epidemic in America;

Whereas, Elder Heart, a nonprofit veteran-run organization that helps veterans heal from the effects of war through the creation of art, was founded by Magnus Johnson to help ease the difficult transition from military to civilian life;

Whereas, Magnus Johnson served in the Army and the Special Forces for eight years, including more than 28 months in combat;

Whereas, Magnus Johnson befriended local artist Jim Connor, who let him use the tools in his shop as a creative outlet;

Whereas, Together they decided that through artwork they could help veterans and also benefit the community;

Whereas, Elder Heart creates public art pieces that are built by veterans;

Whereas, These art pieces often act as a bridge between veterans and the community, helping these veterans return to a normal civilian life;

Whereas, Brown County, and particularly Nashville, is the perfect setting for Elder Heart since this community was created and is maintained by art and the creative people who make it;

Whereas, Sadly far too many veterans are returning home with invisible wounds, are unemployed, and are losing hope in their futures;

Whereas, Every day 22 American veterans commit suicide, making the war at home deadlier than all other combat missions around the world;

Whereas, Due to the stigma surrounding PTSD and traumatic brain injury, veterans often do not seek the help they so urgently need; and

Whereas, Elder Heart was created to help turn the tide for these veterans and believes that "it takes a community to heal a soldier's heart": Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly recognizes the efforts of Elder Heart to ease the often painful transition back to civilian lives for many veterans, especially those who have seen combat duty.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit a copy of this resolution to Elder Heart.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

**ENGROSSED HOUSE BILLS
ON SECOND READING**

Engrossed House Bill 1042

Senator A. Banks called up Engrossed House Bill 1042 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1053

Senator Glick called up Engrossed House Bill 1053 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1062

Senator Yoder called up Engrossed House Bill 1062 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1068

Senator Yoder called up Engrossed House Bill 1068 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1109

Senator Boots called up Engrossed House Bill 1109 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1131

Senator Raatz called up Engrossed House Bill 1131 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1150

Senator Boots called up Engrossed House Bill 1150 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1150 be amended to read as follows:

Page 1, between the enacting clause and line 1, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 1. IC 10-12-2-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 1, 2014 (RETROACTIVE)]: Sec. 1. (a) If an eligible employee ~~retires~~ **separates from service in good standing** after at least twenty (20) years of service, the employee may:

- (1) retain the employee's issued service weapon; and
- (2) receive a "Retired" badge in recognition of the employee's service to the department and the public.

(b) **As used in this subsection, "retirement" means separation from service in good standing with at least twenty (20) years of service. "Retired" has a corresponding meaning.** Upon an eligible employee's retirement, the department shall issue to the employee an identification card that:

- (1) gives the employee's name and rank;
- (2) gives the employee's years of service with the department;**
- ~~(2)~~ (3) signifies that the employee is retired; and
- ~~(3)~~ (4) notes the employee's authority to retain the employee's service weapon."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1150 as printed March 13, 2015.)

SMITH

Motion prevailed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1164

Senator Niemeyer called up Engrossed House Bill 1164 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1184

Senator Grooms called up Engrossed House Bill 1184 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1263

Senator Walker called up Engrossed House Bill 1263 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1271

Senator Kenley called up Engrossed House Bill 1271 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1283

Senator Hershman called up Engrossed House Bill 1283 for

second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1454

Senator Patricia Miller called up Engrossed House Bill 1454 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1539

Senator Holdman called up Engrossed House Bill 1539 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1021

Senator Becker called up Engrossed House Bill 1021 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1046

Senator Hershman called up Engrossed House Bill 1046 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1065

Senator Charbonneau called up Engrossed House Bill 1065 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

SENATE MOTION
(Amendment 1065-1)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1065 be amended to read as follows:

Replace the effective dates in SECTIONS 1 through 4 with "[EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]".

Page 4, after line 13, begin a new paragraph and insert: "SECTION 5. **An emergency is declared for this act.**"

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1065 as printed March 13, 2015.)

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

House Concurrent Resolution 38

House Concurrent Resolution 38, sponsored by Senator Smith:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION memorializing Corporal Jordan Lee Spears.

Whereas, Marine Corporal Jordan Lee Spears was the first Hoosier casualty in the war against the Islamic State in Iraq and Syria (ISIS);

Whereas, Corporal Spears, 21, of Memphis, Indiana, was lost

at sea October 1 while conducting flight operations in the North Arabian Gulf in support of Operation Inherent Resolve;

Whereas, Corporal Spears, two pilots, and another crew chief were on a mission to retrieve soldiers from Kuwait and take them to Baghdad;

Whereas, Shortly after takeoff, their plane lost power and appeared to be ready to crash into the Persian Gulf;

Whereas, With a crash appearing imminent, Corporal Spears and the other crew chief jumped out of the craft and into the Persian Gulf;

Whereas, Corporal Spears' life preserver failed to automatically inflate and, in his heavy flight clothes, boots, and helmet, he flailed in the water;

Whereas, Corporal Spears struggled to manually inflate his life preserver but could not;

Whereas, Corporal Spears was assigned to Marine Medium Tiltrotor Squadron 163, Marine Aircraft Group 16, 3rd Marine Aircraft Wing, 1 Marine Expeditionary Force, Marine Corps Air Station Miramar, California;

Whereas, In the third year of a five year enlistment, Corporal Spears had enlisted in the Marines at 17 years of age and had planned to return to Southern Indiana when his time in the Marines was completed, where he planned to work as a chef;

Whereas, One of six children, Jordan was lovingly remembered by his twin brother, Nathan, with a song he recorded and played at his funeral; and

Whereas, Bravery such as this deserves to be remembered always: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly recognizes the great bravery and love of country displayed by Corporal Jordan Lee Spears and expresses our heartfelt sympathy to his family at this time of great sorrow.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit a copy of this resolution to the family of Corporal Jordan Lee Spears.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by standing vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILLS ON THIRD READING

Engrossed House Bill 1017

Senator Crider called up Engrossed House Bill 1017 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 283: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1025

Senator Steele called up Engrossed House Bill 1025 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 284: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

House Concurrent Resolution 39

House Concurrent Resolution 39, sponsored by Senator Messmer:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION recognizing 70 Indiana volunteer firefighters on the occasion of 50 years of dedicated service to their local volunteer fire departments.

Whereas, Since the early days of firefighters, the volunteer firefighter has been the cornerstone of our great nation's efforts to protect us from the ravages of fire;

Whereas, Among some of the most famous Americans who have served as volunteer firefighters are George Washington, Thomas Jefferson, Benjamin Franklin, Samuel Adams, John Hancock, Paul Revere, Alexander Hamilton, John Jay, John Barry, Aaron Burr, Benedict Arnold, James Buchanan, and Millard Fillmore;

Whereas, Fifty years of dedicated service is an outstanding achievement that requires these brave men to juggle their volunteer firefighting duties with a full-time job, other community activities, and raising their families;

Whereas, Volunteer firefighters and fire departments not only provide fire protection, but also engage in other activities of great benefit and importance to the communities they serve;

Whereas, Citizens across Indiana and the nation are inspired by and indebted to our valiant firefighters who display tremendous courage and bravery each day in carrying out their duties;

Whereas, Firefighters exemplify the power of human compassion and the strength of the American spirit through actions of the most heroic magnitude, and their sacrifices and their selfless dedication merit tribute and recognition by all citizens of this great state;

Whereas, Many firefighters have lost their lives to save the lives of others;

Whereas, Each day, these brave firefighters face danger and peril without fear while performing their jobs with concern and professionalism;

Whereas, The citizens of Indiana are proud to honor these 70 members of our volunteer fire service upon the occasion of 50 years of dedicated service; and

Whereas, It takes a special dedication, a strong desire to help others, and a tireless sense of community to forsake precious time with family and friends to respond to the alarm that a neighbor is in need, these 70 volunteer firefighters, throughout their 50 years of devoted service, heroically performed those responsibilities: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly takes great pleasure in honoring these 70 volunteer firefighters on the occasion of the anniversary of 50 years of dedicated service to their communities.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit a copy of this resolution to each volunteer firefighter.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILLS ON THIRD READING

Engrossed House Bill 1138

Senator Pete Miller called up Engrossed House Bill 1138 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning elections.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 285: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1182

Senator Crider called up Engrossed House Bill 1182 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning public safety.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 286: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1185

Senator Charbonneau called up Engrossed House Bill 1185 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning environmental law.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 287: yeas 44, nays 5. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1208

Senator Messmer called up Engrossed House Bill 1208 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning natural and cultural resources.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 288: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1216

Senator Head called up Engrossed House Bill 1216 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning public safety.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 289: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1338

Senator Raatz called up Engrossed House Bill 1338 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 290: yeas 17, nays 32. The bill was declared defeated.

Engrossed House Bill 1362

Senator Yoder called up Engrossed House Bill 1362 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 291: yeas 48, nays 1. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1501

Senator Leising called up Engrossed House Bill 1501 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning agriculture and animals..

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 292: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1617

Senator Messmer called up Engrossed House Bill 1617 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning property.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 293: yeas 49, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Eckerty be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1216.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Patricia Miller, Perfect, Raatz, Hershman, and Bassler be added as cosponsors of House Bill 1182.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, A. Banks, Bassler, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Brown, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Ford, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Houchin, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Leising, Long, Merritt, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Niemeyer, Perfect, Raatz, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Yoder, M. Young, and Zakas be added as cosponsors of House Concurrent Resolution 39.

MESSMER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, A. Banks, Bassler, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Brown, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Ford, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Houchin, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Leising, Long, Merritt, Messmer, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Niemeyer, Perfect, Raatz, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Yoder, M. Young, and Zakas be added as cosponsors of House Concurrent Resolution 38.

SMITH

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Walker be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1186.

BOOTS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Walker be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1150.

BOOTS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Walker be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1109.

BOOTS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Buck be added as third sponsor of House Bill 1263.

WALKER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Arnold be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1164.

NIEMEYER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Leising be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1433.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Tomes be added as third sponsor of House Bill 1181.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Ford be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1004.

HOLDMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Becker be added as third sponsor of House Bill 1004.

HOLDMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Walker be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1539.

HOLDMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Leising be added as second sponsor and Senator Niemeyer be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1263.

WALKER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Breaux be added as third sponsor and Senator Ford be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1273.

PETE MILLER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Taylor be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1138.

PETE MILLER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lanane be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1540.

ALTING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Alting be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1053.

GLICK

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Perfect be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1065.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Yoder be added as second sponsor of House Bill 1025.

STEELE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1182.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1025.

STEELE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1181.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1501.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Tallian be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1398.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Tomes be added as coauthor of Senate Concurrent Resolution 29.

MESSMER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1362.

YODER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1216.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as cosponsor of House Bill 1434.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move we adjourn until 1:30 p.m., Tuesday, March 17, 2015.

LONG

Motion prevailed.

The Senate adjourned at 2:56 p.m.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Secretary of the Senate

SUE ELLSPERMANN
President of the Senate